

**AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR CYTOTECHNOLOGY INC.  
BY-LAWS**

**PREAMBLE**

Section 1. The American Society for Cytotechnology Inc. was established by a Founders' Committee, whose function ceased at the time of the formation and assumption of office of the first Executive Council.

Section 2. The Founders' Committee was created on July 14, 1979, and consisted of the following members:

- (1) Patricia R. Ashton
- (2) Elsie V. Carruthers
- (3) Shirley E. Greening
- (4) Margaret J. Harris
- (5) Marion Danos Holmquist
- (6) Catherine M. Keebler
- (7) Edna E. Pixley
- (8) Angela L. Savino
- (9) Florence W. Woodworth

Section 3: The members of the Founders' Committee shall become, automatically, voting members of the American Society for Cytotechnology, Inc.

Section 4: The Executive council shall be elected by mail vote within one year of the incorporation of the American Society for Cytotechnology, Inc. The Founders' Committee shall arrange for, conduct, tally, and announce the results of this election. Until this election, the Founders' Committee shall function as the Executive Council.

Section 5: The Founders' Committee shall appoint the initial President, Vice-President, Secretary-Treasurer, and Legislative Consultant, all of whom will serve until their successors are selected following the annual voting in 1981.

**ARTICLE I**

**NAME**

The name of this organization shall be THE AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR CYTOTECHNOLOGY, INC., to be referred to as the ASCT.

## ARTICLE II

### PURPOSE

Section 1. To enhance the role of the cytotechnologist in the health care system.

Section 2. To promote the highest professional standards for the practice of diagnostic cytology.

Section 3. To stimulate communication and cooperation among those persons or organizations actively engaged in the practice of diagnostic cytology and other health care professionals.

Section 4. To inform members of current legislative and legal issues pertaining to the profession of cytotechnology and other related professions.

Section 5. To support and promote educational opportunities for the membership on local, regional, national and international levels.

Section 6: To provide the public and consumers of cytology services with information on the use and value of the cytologic method and the role of cytology in health care maintenance.

## ARTICLE III

### MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. The membership of the American Society for Cytotechnology, Inc. shall be composed of the following categories:

- (1) Full Members
- (2) Student Members
- (3) Associate Members
- (4) Retired Members
- (5) Honorarys Members
- (6) Emeritus Members

Section 2. Full Members are eligible to vote and hold office. Individuals eligible for full membership include:

- (a) Cytotechnologists who have EITHER
  1. passed the certification examination of a recognized certifying agency (HEW, ASCP BOC) OR
  2. have graduated from an accredited training program
1. (b) International cytotechnologists who have passed the

qualifications examination of a recognized certifying agency (IAC, ASCP BOC) OR

2. have passed the national examination in countries where a national registry for cytotechnologists exists OR

3. are currently employed in the field of cytology

(c) Physicians, dentists, veterinarians and those with Ph.D. degrees, who are engaged in Cytopathology practice, teaching or research.

Section 3. Student, Associate, and Retired members enjoy all the privileges of full members but are not eligible to vote or to hold office.

(a) Student membership consists of students enrolled in CAAHEP accredited school of cytotechnology, or international students training in the field of cytology..

(b) Associate Members consist of individuals interested in diagnostic cytology, other than those described in Section 2.

(c) Retired membership is open to those who have worked in the field 10 or more years, have officially retired from the profession and no longer work in cytology or in related fields (sales rep, etc.) or due to a disability are no longer able to work in any capacity.

Section 4 Honorary Members and Emeritus Members enjoy all the privileges of full members but are not eligible to vote or hold office and are exempt from payment of dues. Honorary members consist of individuals recognized for their distinguished contribution(s) to diagnostic cytology.

Emeritus Members consist of full members who have been in good standing for fifteen (15) consecutive years and who request in writing that the Executive Council grant them Emeritus Membership. To qualify one must be at least 62 years of age and retired from the field of cytology or, due to a disability is no longer able to work in any capacity.

Section 5. Membership in the Society may be terminated by written resignation or for failure to remit dues payment within 90 days following the due date. Failure to remit dues means a member is no longer in good standing and is no longer entitled to the rights or privileges of membership. .

Officers must remain in good standing at all times during their term of office or forfeit their position until such time as they return to good standing or are replaced by the Executive Board.

## ARTICLE IV

### OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Section 1. The Officers and Regional Directors of the American Society for Cytotechnology shall be called the Executive Council and shall constitute the directing body of the Society.

Section 2. The Officers shall be the President, President-Elect, Treasurer, Legislative Consultant, and Immediate Past President.

- (a) Commencing with incorporation and until the first election, the officers shall be appointed by the Founders' Committee.
- (b) The President-Elect shall be elected by the highest number of votes cast by the membership of the Society from a slate to be determined by the Executive Council. Election of the President-Elect shall be by email ballot in advance of the Executive Council meeting. In the event of a tie the Executive Council will decide the issue. The President-Elect succeeds to the Presidency immediately following the term of office served as President-Elect.
- (c) In order to qualify for the office of President-Elect, an individual nominated must have served one term on the Executive Council as an elected Director, or have served as Treasurer or Legislative Consultant for a minimum of three years, or served as a Committee Chairman for a minimum of two years or have been one of the nine (9) members of the Founders' Committee and be a current dues paying member in good standing.
- (d) The Treasurer and Legislative Consultant shall be appointed annually by the President and the appointments shall be subject to the approval of the Executive Council. The Treasurer and Legislative Consultant may serve three (3) consecutive, one (1) year terms after which he/she must sit out term before reappointment. To be eligible the individual(s) must be a dues paying member in good standing.
- (e) A person may serve as an elected Regional Director for three consecutive terms (6 years) after which he/she must sit out one term (2 years) before being eligible to be elected again. To be eligible, the Regional Director must be a dues paying member in good standing.
- (f) Commencing with the first election, the term of office for the Officers of the Society shall be one year terms of office commence at the conclusion of the annual Executive Board meeting.
- (g-) In the event an officer, other than the President, is unable to fulfill his/her term of service, the President with the approval of the Executive Council,

shall appoint a person qualified by the bylaws to complete the appointed term of office until the next scheduled election.

Section 3. The directors shall be five Regional Directors (one from each of the five geographical regions of the United States, Puerto Rico and Canada).

(a) Each Regional Director shall be elected by the highest number of votes cast by those members of the same region as the nominee. In the event of a tie the Executive Council will determine the mechanism for deciding the issue.

(b) Nominations for Regional Director may be made by written petition signed by at least one member of the same region as the nominee. The region is determined by the nominee's ASCT mailing address.

(c)The ballots shall be prepared by the Nominations Committee, with the approval of the Executive Council, and circulated to the regional membership for vote. Election of Regional Directors shall be by email ballot and completed in advance of the Executive Council Meeting.

(d) The terms of the Regional Directors shall be staggered. Those elected to represent regions 2 and 4 shall have terms expiring initially in 2005, and subsequently every two years thereafter, while those elected to represent regions 1, 3 and 5 shall have terms expiring initially in 2006 and every two years thereafter.

(e) In the event a Regional Director is unable to fulfill his/her term of service, the President with the approval of the Executive Council shall appoint a person qualified by the bylaws to complete the term of service until the next scheduled election for that region.

Section 4. The Executive Council may review and revise the five regional boundaries to ensure adequate representation of regions. However, any change made to the boundaries shall not affect the current Executive Council membership in office.

Section 5. The Editor of the ASCT Voice, shall be appointed annually by the President and the appointment shall be subject to the approval of the Executive Council.

## ARTICLE V

### MEETINGS

Section 1. There shall be an annual meeting of the Council to be held between March and July. The President shall preside over and send the call to the meeting. The place and

date(s) shall be determined by the Executive Council.

Section 2. Executive Council meetings shall be called by the President.

Section 3. Special meetings of the Society may be called by a majority vote of the Executive Council to handle such business as shall be specified in the call to the meeting which shall be sent to all Executive Council members in advance of the meeting.

Section 4. No quorum shall be required to conduct business at a Society meeting but at least five (5) members of the Executive Council shall be present at a Council meeting before the Executive Council may conduct business.

Section 5. The permanent Committees of the American Society of Cytotechnology, Inc. shall be:

- (1) Membership Committee
- (2) Nominating Committee
- (3) Budget and Finance Committee
- (4) Annual Conference Planning Committee

Section 6. Other committees shall be appointed by the President when deemed advisable.

## ARTICLE VII

### BONDING AND AUDITING

Section 1. The Treasurer shall be bonded in an amount set by the Executive Council, if the funds of the corporation exceed \$50,000.00. this is under D&O insurance

Section 2. The financial records of the corporation shall be reviewed annually with an external audit at least every other year. ASCT does tax returns only each year and a review when needed – every 3-4 years.

Section 3. The annual fiscal year of the corporation shall end June 30.

## ARTICLE VIII

### SELF-DEALING PROHIBITED

Section 1. No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its members, directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the

corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article II. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation. The corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these by-laws, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law) or (b) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).

## ARTICLE IX

### DISSOLUTION

Section 1. Upon the dissolution of the corporation, the Executive Council shall, after paying or making provision for the payment of all the liabilities of the corporation, dispose of all the assets of the corporation exclusively for the purposes of the corporation by transferring all of its assets to any organization incorporated and operated exclusively for charitable or educational purposes as shall at the time qualify it or them as an exempt organization or organizations under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. (or the corresponding provisions of any future United states Internal Revenue Law), as the Executive Council shall determine. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the circuit court in which the principle office of the corporation is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

## ARTICLE X

### AMENDMENTS

Section 1. These by-laws may be amended or repealed by the Executive Council by a two thirds vote at any meeting of the Council provided only that the language of the proposed amendments shall have been mailed to all council members with the call to the meeting. Electronic proxy voting is allowed for absent Executive Council members within 10 business days of the vote.

Revised 12-11-00 SBD

Revised 3-5-04 SB Dubey, By Laws Chairman

Revised 8-2-04 SB Dubey, By Laws Chairman

Revised 3-10-05 SB Dubey, By Laws Chairman

Revised 3-15-07 SB Dubey, By Laws Chairman  
Revised 10-5-09 Brent Brewerton, By Laws Chairman  
Revised 12-6-10 Brent Brewerton, By Laws Chairman  
Revised 4-27-17 Joan Rossi, By Laws Chair  
Revised 5-3-18 Joan Rossi, By Laws Chair